

Operational Services

Transportation

The District shall provide free transportation for any student in the District who resides: (1) at a distance of one and one-half miles or more from his or her assigned school, unless the School Board has certified to the Illinois State Board of Education that adequate public transportation is available, or (2) within one and one-half miles from his or her assigned school where walking to school or to a pick-up point or bus stop would constitute a serious hazard due to vehicular traffic or rail crossing, and adequate public transportation is not available. A student's parent(s)/guardian(s) may file a petition with the Board requesting transportation due to the existence of a serious safety hazard. Free transportation service and vehicle adaptation is provided for a special education student if included in the student's individualized educational program. Non-public school students shall be transported in accordance with State law. Homeless students shall be transported in accordance with the McKinney Homeless Assistance Act.

If a student is at a location within the District, other than his or her residence, for childcare purposes at the time for transportation to and/or from school, that location may be considered for purposes of determining the 1½ miles from the school attended. Unless the Superintendent or designee establishes new routes, pick-up and drop-off locations for students in day care must be along the District's regular routes. The District will not discriminate among types of locations where day care is provided, which may include the premises of licensed providers, relatives' homes, or neighbors' homes.

Bus schedules and routes shall be determined by the Superintendent or designee and shall be altered only with the Superintendent or designee's approval and direction. In setting the routes, the pick-up and discharge points should be as safe for students as possible.

No school employee may transport students in school or private vehicles unless authorized by the administration.

Every vehicle regularly used for the transportation of students must pass safety inspections in accordance with State law and Illinois Department of Transportation regulations. The strobe light on a school bus may be illuminated any time a bus is bearing one or more students. The Superintendent shall implement procedures in accordance with State law for accepting ~~erratic driving reports~~ comment calls about school bus driving.

All contracts for charter bus services must contain the clause prescribed by State law regarding criminal background checks for bus drivers.

Pre-Trip and Post-Trip Vehicle Inspection

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a pre-trip and post-trip inspection procedure to ensure that the school bus driver: (1) tests the two-way radio and ensures that it is functioning properly before the bus is operated, and (2) walks to the rear of the bus before leaving the bus at the end of each route, work shift, or work day, to check the bus for children or other passengers in the bus.

- LEGAL REF.: McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.22 and 5/29-1 et seq.
105 ILCS 45/1-15.
625 ILCS ~~5/1-148.3a-5~~, 5/1-182, 5/11-1414.1, 5/12-815, 5/12-816, 5/12-821, and
5/13-109.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.510 and 226.750; Part 120.
~~92 Ill.Admin.Code §440-3.~~
- CROSS REF.: ~~4:170 (Safety), 5:100 (Staff Development), 5:120 (Ethics), 5:280 (Educational
Support Personnel - Duties and Qualifications), 6:140 (Education of Homeless
Children), 7:220 (Bus Conduct)~~
- ADMIN. PROC.: ~~4:110-AP2 (Pre-Trip and Post-Trip Inspection; Bus Driving Comments), 4:170-
AP3 (School Bus Safety Rules), 4:170-E3 (Emergency Medical Information for
Students Having Special Needs or Medical Conditions Who Ride School Buses),
6:140-AP (Education of Homeless Children)~~

Approved by Board Action 02/05/1991
Amended by Board Action 01/05/1993
Amended by Board Action 04/06/1999
Amended by Board Action 03/03/2003
Amended by Board Action 05/14/2008
~~Amended by Board Action 05/13/2010~~

Operational Services

~~Hazardous and Infectious Materials~~ **Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds**

The Superintendent or designee(s) shall take all reasonable measures to protect: (1) the safety of District personnel, students, and visitors on District premises from risks associated with hazardous materials and (2) the environmental quality of the District's buildings and grounds. **Before pesticides are used on District premises, the Superintendent or designee shall notify employees and parents/guardians of students as required by the Structural Pest Control Act, 225 ILCS 235/, and the Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act, 415 ILCS 65/.**

LEGAL REF.: 29 C.F.R. Part 1910.1030, as adopted by the Illinois Department of Labor, 56 Ill.Admin.Code §350.300(c).
20 ILCS 3130/, Green Buildings Act.
 105 ILCS 5/10-20.17a; **5/10-20.46**; 135/; and 140/, Green Cleaning School Act.
 225 ILCS 235/, Structural Pest Control Act.
 415 ILCS 65/, Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act.
 820 ILCS 255/, Toxic Substances Disclosure to Employees Act.
 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.330, **Hazardous Materials Training.**
 56 Ill.Admin.Code Part 205, **Toxic Substances Disclosure To Employees.**

CROSS REF.: 4:150 (Facility Management and Building Programs), 4:170 (Safety)

ADMIN. PROC.: **4:160-AP (Administrative Procedure - Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds)**

Adopted by Board Action 04/06/1999
 Amended by Board Action 03/06/2001
 Amended by Board Action 01/09/2008
 Amended by Board Action 01/07/2009
Amended by Board Action 05/13/2010

General Personnel

Sexual Harassment **Workplace Harassment Prohibited**

The School District expects the workplace environment to be productive, respectful, and free of unlawful harassment. District employees shall not engage in harassment or abusive conduct on the basis of an individual's race, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, citizenship status, disability, or other protected status identified in Board policy 5:10, *Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment*. Harassment of students, including, but not limited to, sexual harassment, is prohibited by Board policy 7:20, *Harassment of Students Prohibited*.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited

The School District shall provide ~~employees an employment~~ a workplace environment free of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct, or communications constituting ~~sexual harassment~~ on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal law.

District employees shall not make unwelcome sexual advances or request sexual favors or engage in any unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature when: (1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment; (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. Sexual harassment prohibited by this policy includes verbal or physical conduct. The terms intimidating, hostile, or offensive include, but are not limited to, conduct that has the effect of humiliation, embarrassment, or discomfort. Sexual harassment will be evaluated in light of all the circumstances.

Making a Complaint: Enforcement

A violation of this policy may result in discipline, up to and including discharge. Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding ~~sexual harassment~~ will likewise be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. **An employee's employment, compensation, or work assignment shall not be adversely affected by complaining or providing information about harassment.** Retaliation against employees for bringing bona fide complaints or providing information about harassment is prohibited (see Board policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*).

Aggrieved persons, who feel comfortable doing so, should directly inform the person engaging in ~~sexually~~ the harassing conduct or communication that such conduct or communication is offensive and must stop.

Employees should report claims of ~~sexual harassment~~ to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or use the Board policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*. Employees may choose to report to a person of the employee's same sex. ~~Initiating a complaint of sexual harassment shall not adversely affect the complainant's employment, compensation, or work assignments.~~

There are no express time limits for initiating complaints and grievances under this policy; however, every effort should be made to file such complaints as soon as possible, while facts are known and potential witnesses are available.

Whom to Contact with a Report or Complaint

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the District's current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:

Joni L. Swanson
Name
209 S. College Avenue
Address
Geneseo, IL 61254
309-945-0450
Telephone

Complaint Managers:

Jack B. Schlindwein
Name
209 S. College Avenue
Address
Geneseo, IL 61254
309-945-0450
Telephone

Joni L. Swanson
Name
209 S. College Avenue
Address
Geneseo, IL 61254
309-945-0450
Telephone

The Superintendent shall also use reasonable measures to inform staff members and applicants of this policy, which shall include reprinting this policy in the appropriate handbooks.

LEGAL REF.: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., 29 C.F.R. §1604.11.
Title IX of the Education Amendments, 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.; 34 C.F.R. §1604.11.
Ill. Human Rights Act.775 ILCS 5/2-101(E), 5/2-102(D), 5/5-102, and 5/5-102.2(D).
56 Ill. Admin.Code Parts 2500, 2510, 5210, and 5220.
Burlington Industries v. Ellerth, 118 S.Ct. 2257 (1998).
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, 118 S.Ct. 2275 (1998).
Franklin v. Gwinnett Co. Public Schools, 112 S.Ct. 1028 (1992).
Harris v. Forklift Systems, 114 S.Ct. 367 (1993).
Jackson v. Birmingham Board of Education, 125 S.Ct. 1497 (2005).
Meritor Savings Bank v. Vinson, 106 S.Ct. 2399 (1986).
Oncale v. Sundown Offshore Services, 118 S.Ct. 998 (1998).
Porter v. Erie Foods International, Inc., 576 F. 3d 629 (7th Cir. 2009).
Sangamon County Sheriff's Dept.v.Ill. Human Rights Com'n. 908 N.E.2d 39 (Ill., 2009)

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited)

Adopted by Board Action 03/05/1991
Amended by Board Action 04/06/1999
Amended by Board Action 04/09/2008
Amended by Board Action 05/13/2010